ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
Novenber 25, 2008
9:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Bill W el echowski

Senator Gene Therri aul t

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MCuire
OTHER LEG SLATORS PRESENT

Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Represent ati ve-el ect Pete Peterson
Representative Les Gara

COW TTEE CALENDAR

Hearing on Enstar/Aurora Power Custoner Gas Supplies
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

MARTI N MARTENSEN

Continental Auto G oup

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed extrenme concern about
find a new source for gas by January 1, 2009.

M KE GORDQON, President

JADON I nc., dba Chil koot Charlies

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed extrenme concern about
find a new source for gas by January 1, 2009.

TOM TEI BER, representative
Nort hwest Airlines Cargo
Anchor age, AK

having to

having to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- Novenber 25, 2008



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed extrenme concern about having to
find a new source for gas by January 1, 2009.

MARK SLAUGHTER, Manager

Gas Supply

Enstar |nc.

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions related to the letter
that Enstar sent businesses about the possible need to arrange
alternative gas supply service for 2009.

DAN DI ECKGRAEFF, Manager

Rat es and Regul atory Affairs

Enstar |nc.

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions related to the letter
that Enstar sent businesses about the possible need to arrange
alternative gas supply service for 2009.

BOB STOLLER, Assistant Attorney GCeneral

Civil D vision

Conmmerci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information about the RCA Order No.
8.

ERI C | SAACSON, Vi ce President

Conmer ci al Assets

ConocoPhi Il l'i ps

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Read a statenment and responded to questions
related to Enstar’s natural gas contracts.

Dan C ark, Manager

Cook Inlet Assets

ConocoPhi l l'i ps

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions related to Enstar’s
natural gas contracts.

CARRI LOCKHART, Manager

Production Operations

Marat hon G| in Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Read a statenent related to Enstar’s
natural gas contracts.

STEVE DE VRIES, Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Cvil Division

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- Novenber 25, 2008



Regul atory Affairs and Public Advocacy (RAPA)

Depart nent of Law

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Responded to questions related to gas
contracts and expl ained RAPA' s rol e before the RCA

CRAI G TI LLERY, Deputy Attorney General

Cvil Division, Departnent of Law

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: WAs avail abl e for questions.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:03:07 AM Present at the call to
order were Senators Huggins, Welechowski and French. Also
present was Representative Dahlstrom and Representative-elect
Pet er son.

Enstar Gas Supply Hearing

CHAIR FRENCH stated that the Enstar gas supply hearing was
called because of a letter that was sent to sone Anchorage
busi nesses advising that they would have to obtain gas from a
source other than Enstar by January 1, 2009. M. G@Glindo, who
owns Taco Loco, contacted him to ask how he is supposed to
secure a new gas supply in a nonth. About a half dozen other
busi nesses subsequently contacted him with the sanme problem
Come January 1, 2009 they won’t have a supply of gas.

9:04: 03 AM

CHAIR FRENCH said he views this as a sort of mcrocosm of what
the larger Cook Inlet basin faces over the next four or five
years as gas supplies get tighter. Thus, it seened |like a good
time to: a) get to the bottom of the problem facing the affected
Anchor age businesses and b) look at the longer term gas supply
issues in the Cook Inlet basin. The agenda today is to hear from
af fected businesses, Enstar, a Departnent of Law representative
for the RCA, ConocoPhillips and Marathon, and the Departnent of
Law representative for regulatory affairs and public advocacy
( RAPA) .

9: 04: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM relayed that she too heard from
constituents and |ast week she sent a letter to the RCA asking
about a contingency plan. To date she hasn’t received a response

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- Novenber 25, 2008



or phone call from anyone. “l’m anxious to hear what they have
to say.”

CHAI R FRENCH noted that Representative-elect Peterson made gas
supply issues a large part of his canpaign and asked if he had
anything to add.

REPRESENTATI VE- el ect PETERSON replied he had cone to follow the
proceedi ngs; he had no questions.

9:05:41 AM
CHAI R FRENCH called on M. Martensen to provide testinony.

MARTI N MARTENSEN, Continental Auto G oup, thanked the committee
for letting him testify. He said that he received the letter
Senator French nentioned and he’s concerned about where he wll
get gas for his four deal erships. “For the next five days we are
custonmers of Aurora Power and then thereafter we’ll be customers
of Enstar for 31 days.” Running his business is stressful
enough, and figuring out where to get gas supplies to heat the
business on a daily basis is the last thing he wants to worry
about. Many peopl e have great concern about what to do next. “W
contacted Chevron, we contacted Conoco, we contacted Marathon as
the letter suggested.and all of them said ‘Wll, we're not in
the business of providing gas to a conpany as yourself.” W
asked what to do and the suppliers said they didn't know.” He
said he'd |ike to know what the next step is and he appreciates
| egi sl ators | ooking into the situation.

9:07: 54 AM

MR. MARTENSEN said that Enstar has told himthey do not have the
gas to take himon as a custoner, but it’s not because of a gas
shortage. It’'s related to a negotiated price that the RCA finds
acceptable. “It’s all a bit over ny head; all |I care is that 1'd
like to be able to heat my buildings and go on with business.”

9:08: 32 AM

CHAI R FRENCH asked how long his conmpany bought gas from Aurora
Power .

MR. MARTENSEN recalled that it’s been since 1995 or 1996.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he has ever had to negotiate a different
supply contract w th another conpany.

MR. MARTENSEN sai d no.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- Novenber 25, 2008



CHAI R FRENCH asked how many enpl oyees he has.

MR. MARTENSEN replied he has 200 enpl oyees and confirnmed that he
cannot operate w thout natural gas.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if the information in the letter Enstar sent
was hel pful.

MR. MARTENSEN replied it really wasn't, but he doesn’t want to
throw Enstar under the bus because he ultinately wants to be a
custoner. Calling Chevron, Conoco, and Marathon |ed nowhere, he
sai d.

9:09:47 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he originally received gas through
Enst ar.

MR. MARTENSEN expl ained he was initially an Enstar custoner and
he swi tched when Aurora Gas and Aurora Power cane along and sold
gas at a cheaper rate. It was a 30-day contract so Continental
Auto Group was a custoner thru Novenber 2008.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what volunme of gas his business uses
in a nonth.

MR. MARTENSEN replied he didn't know how nmuch the four
deal er shi ps use.

9:10:41 AM
REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked if he was ever offered a one-year
contract.

MR. MARTENSEN replied a 30-day contract was presented initially
and that’'s what he signed. Either party could cancel with 30-
days noti ce.

9:11: 01 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that he had received a discounted price
from Aurora and asked if he can inagine a scenario where he
m ght pay a premiumto ensure he had gas.

MR. MARTENSEN replied absolutely. It was a prudent business
decision to pay |less, but he would be willing to pay a prem um

9:11: 34 AM

M KE GORDON, President, JADON Inc., dba Chilkoot Charlies,
thanked |egislators for the opportunity to testify. He said

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- Novenber 25, 2008



there’s a saying in Africa that when the elephants fight, only
the grass gets tranpled, and that's how he feels today. In 39
years of operation he thought he’'d dealt with every adversity
i mgi nable in the business world, but this one takes the cake.
It doesn't seem right that a public wutility could single
busi nesses out and decide that they either do or do not get
service. “Frankly, 1'd like to know how they decided who got
these letters and who didn't.” On the surface it seens that they
went to people who had been getting service from Aurora. He was
told to contact Enstar, which he did. He filled out paperwork
and signed an agreenent and thought everything was fine until he
got the letter from Enstar.

MR. GORDON described the Novenber 10 |etter as anbiguous. None
of the four options worked. The phone nunber for WMarathon was
non-wor ki ng, Conoco and Union both said they weren't in retai

busi ness and couldn’t help. The last option was Aurora and they
had already told himthat he couldn’'t get gas from them That’'s

when he called Senator French. “1 don’t have any solutions to
of fer, | just feel like this is an outrageous set of
circunstances.” If he doesn’t have gas he couldn’t operate and
all the pipes in the building would freeze and his property
woul d essentially be destroyed. “l| appreciate any help you can

give ne,” he said.

9:14: 55 AM
CHAI R FRENCH asked how | ong he bought gas from Aurora.

MR. GORDON estimated it was about 10 years. In response to
further questions he said he has 120 enpl oyees.

CHAI R FRENCH noted that a quick-witted person had suggested that
Chi | koot Charlies mght run on body heat.

MR. GORDON replied that may work on Friday and Saturday, but not
on Sunday.

9:15: 30 AM

TOM TEI BER, representing Northwest Airlines Cargo in Anchorage
thanked the commttee for inviting him to give his story. He
expl ai ned that the business has a 50,000 square foot facility at
the Anchorage airport and several hundred enployees. As others
have testified, he too received a letter from his natural gas
provi der, Aurora Power, advising that they would not provide gas
after Decenber 1, 2008. Subsequently, he signed with Enstar to
supply gas to his large comrercial accounts. Northwest Airlines
Cargo already has small commercial accounts with Enstar, he

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- Novenber 25, 2008



added. Then on Novenber 10 he received a letter from Enstar
advising that it could only confirm conmtnent for gas until
Decenmber 31, 2008. He too contracted three of the four gas
suppliers listed in the letter and they all said they could not
supply gas. Aurora Power was |listed as the fourth alternative
but it didn't nake any sense to nmake that call. He said it’'s
frustrating and his sense is that the elephants are playing
t hese businesses, getting them to conme testify and push their
agenda.

CHAI R FRENCH asked where Northwest Airlines Cargo is |ocated.

MR. TEIBER explained that it is north of FEDEX and adjacent to
the Pen Air hanger.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he is representing the cargo business and
not the space heating needs for the different airlines at the
ai rport.

MR TEIBER clarified he is not representing the termnal
building. Northwest Airlines Cargo is a warehouse facility.
Responding to further questions he explained that the facility
houses over 100 Northwest enployees: 200 pilots that are in the
facility at wvarious times, and 70 to 80 contract vender
enpl oyees. The building is slightly smaller than the UPS
facility.

CHAI R FRENCH t hanked himfor comng to testify on short notice.

9:18: 50 AM

ADAM GALINDO, Vice President and CEO, Taku Local Products in
Anchorage, said he has about 20 year-round enployees and is
probably one of the largest food manufacturers in Alaska. He
explained that he had been a customer of Aurora for about 7
years and he too received a letter from Enstar advising that he
woul d not receive gas after the end of the year. On average he
uses about 3,000 cubic feet of gas each nonth. He contacted Don
Page at Chevron and others and he |earned that they don’t sel
to individual custoners.

MR. GALINDO said that a year ago he spent about $1.2 mllion
upgrading and automating his facility and wthout a supply of
gas he would go out of business. A 1.6 mllion BTU hr oven is
essentially scrap netal if there isn't any gas. Wthout gas he
couldn’t keep the building from freezing and he couldn’t produce
any product. Conpetition is fierce in both retail and whol esal e
and any lag in producing his product would provide outside

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- Novenber 25, 2008



conpanies an advantage that he mght not gain back. *“I
understand the shortage of gas as well as the economc factors
of it, but to use our conpanies as pawns is just absurd.” He
said he’s willing to pay a higher prem um

MR. GALINDO said that 7 years ago Enstar advised him that he
woul d get a cheaper rate from Aurora, but he never would have
switched had he known that it would ultimately put him out of
busi ness.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if there are other small gas suppliers doing
busi ness in the Anchorage area.

MR. GALINDO replied he isn't aware of any.

9:22:14 AM
CHAIR FRENCH said that the commttee would next hear from
Enst ar .

9:22:36 AM

MARK SLAUGHTER, Manager of Gas Supply for Enstar, and DAN
DI ECKGRAEFF, Manager of Rates and Regul atory Affairs for Enstar

i ntroduced thensel ves.

MR. SLAUGHTER thanked the commttee and said they didn't have
prepared testinony; they would respond to questions based on the
| etter Senator French sent to Enstar.

CHAI R FRENCH noted that Andrew White signed the letter that was
sent to custoners and he assuned that M. Wite did so after
havi ng consulted with other Enstar conpany nenbers.

MR. SLAUGHTER agreed. The reasoning was that it wuld be
i nprudent to take on custoners returning from Aurora Power when
Enstar didn't have gas available. He rem nded nenbers that about
two years ago Fairbanks Natural Gas didn't have gas under
contract and continued to accept customers. “W did not believe
that that was a prudent policy to follow and we did not want to
al l ow our custoners have that sane situation happen to them?”

CHAI R FRENCH conceded that it sounds like a good idea but the
solutions offered weren't particularly viable. As one wtness
poi nted out, the nunber for Marathon G| Conpany was not and is
not operating.

MR. SLAUGHTER said that was a clerical error and Enstar has
since nmade phone calls providing corrected nunbers. He then

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- Novenber 25, 2008



pointed out that Marathon, wunder the Mrathon Natural Gas
Conmpany, has been and is selling gas to third-party custoners
“I't’s not that these conpanies do not sell.. they have in the
past and sone of themare right now,” he said.

9:25:40 AM

CHAI R FRENCH conceded that his letter had an error; Marathon has
some small custoners. He asked if ConocoPhillips sells to retai
cust oners.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF replied they did when they were part of Arco and
he believes that continued for a tine after the nerger.
ConocoPhillips currently does not sell to retail custoners.

9:26:32 AM

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he believes that ConocoPhillips has sold
to retail gas users within the |last decade and if so, on what
scal e.

MR. DI ECKCGRAEFF replied his recollection is that they were
bundling to large, primarily to governnental, units.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if, prior to sending the letter, anyone from
Enstar called ConocoPhillips to ask if they were willing to sell
gas to small commercial users in the Anchorage bow .

MR.  SLAUGHTER replied Enstar advised ConocoPhillips and the
other suppliers about the letter and the contact information.
“W have offered to provide back-office support to these
conpanies in the event that they chose to sell.to these
custoners.” Enstar is trying to ensure that no one goes cold

but it doesn’'t believe it’s proper to tell custoners that there
is a supply of gas conme January when there is not a contract in
place. “We wanted to get that information out as soon as
possi bl e,” he said.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF added that Enstar is aware that Marathon G| and
ConocoPhillips do have the gas that Enstar was contracted to
purchase and the RCA has not approved.

CHAIR FRENCH responded saying the contract issues would be
addressed later; he's still stuck on the letter. Again he
guesti oned whether Enstar specifically asked ConocoPhillips if
it would sell gas to the individuals who were going to receive
the letter.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- Novenber 25, 2008



MR. SLAUGHTER said that ConocoPhillips didn't indicate one way
or another. In response to a question, he said the same applies
t o Uni on/ Chevron.

CHAI R FRENCH questioned why Enstar placed Aurora Power on the
list.

MR. SLAUCGHTER replied Enstar did not want to discrimnate. “In
the event they changed their mnd, they're all on 30-day
contracts.”

CHAIR FRENCH asked if he believes that it’s conceivable that
Aurora could change its m nd and pick up the custoners again.

MR. SLAUGHTER sai d yes.

9:28:40 AM
REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked for an explanation of Enstar’s
policy on cutting off service to custoners in the w nter

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF asked if she's referring to transport custoners,
supply custonmers or gas supply customers in general

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM replied in general.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF explained that Enstar’s tariff provides that
during extreme weather conditions it stays the normal tariff for

resi denti al custoners  for di sconnection for non- paynent .
Specifically it’s for residential life and safety issues. “W
were instructed to put that Ianguage in our tariff by the
comm ssion several years ago,” he said. There is no such

protection in the tariff for comercial custonmers. Unpaid
commerci al accounts are subject to disconnection.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM said she wunderstands that the RCA
instructed Enstar to include that |anguage.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF said that's correct. That was Enstar’s inform
policy and the RCA asked for it to be formalized in the tariff.
It’s been that way for a long tinme, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked what the policy is for custoners
who paid their bills from Aurora for 7 to 10 years before
returning to Enstar as a custonmer. WII| they be cut off January
1?

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 10- Novenber 25, 2008



MR. DI ECKGRAEFF reiterated that Enstar’s tariff does not permt
it to bring on custoners if there isn't a gas supply for them
“So we cannot bring the Aurora custoners onto our systemif we
don’t have a gas supply for them” It would disrupt other Enstar
custonmers and their tariff prohibits that.

9:31: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked if any existing custonmers would
be cut off in the event of an extreme cold spell that resulted
in excessive consunption of gas. Were would you get the gas for
t hat ?

9:31: 37 AM
MR. SLAUGHTER said current Enstar custoners won't be cut off;
there is gas under contract for them He continued:

We have enough gas January 1 for Enstar’s custoners.
For these returning custoners, these custoners are in
the forecast that we used to negotiate these
contracts. W estinmated that they would be com ng back
to us beginning this year. W thought we would have
t hem back sooner so they're in our plan for 2009. W
can’t control what Aurora Power does and | think that
should be the question. ... Wiy is Aurora shedding
custoners at this tinme?

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM agreed that is a valid question, and
again asked if there is gas for existing custonmers if usage were
to suddenly doubl e.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied yes; Enstar has gas for existing
customers.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF added that Enstar’s gas supply contracts follow
the load. The gas supply is structured such that for 2009
certain conpanies pick up a certain percentage of the forecasted
| oad. Whether it’s a warm or cold day they pick up their pro-
rata share as the load noves up and down. The gas supply
contracts that Enstar negotiated were approved by the RCA with
the conditional amendnments that have not yet been negoti ated.
Those <contracts were to supply five percent of the |oad
including the anticipated return of [Aurora] custoners. Wthout
the contracts that five percent of the load is not covered. The
remaining 95 percent of the forecasted load is covered. He
conti nued:

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- Novenber 25, 2008



The way the contracts work is they take care of their
pro-rata share of our |oad regardless of what the
weather is. So on a warm sunmer day one conpany is
providing 60 percent and on a cold day they're
providing 60 percent. So our contracts provide the
deliverability. So if it gets all of a sudden cold and
everybody wuses 50 percent nore, which in reality
between a warm day and a cold day they're using 10
tinmes nor e. Qur existing contracts have that
flexibility, and our new contracts would cover that as
well. So to answer your question again, for existing
custoners we have existing contracts that will provide
that flexibility between the high and the low So if
it does double, they’'re — we’re - covered.

9:34:40 AM

CHAI R FRENCH observed that those contracts seem to have room to
nove a lot nore gas if it's needed. He characterized it as nore
of an accounting issue than a gas supply issue.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF asked what custoner should be interrupted if
Enstar takes these custoners on and it gets cold. “W don’t have
the gas for the cold days. That’'s why our tariff specifically
states that we cannot bring back returning custoners unless we
have sufficient gas to cover them on the average day as well as
the peak day w thout disrupting our other custonmers.” The only
way to take on the returning customers would be to plan to
interrupt existing custoners that all along have been paying the
gas sales contracts at a higher price than the returning
custoners paid to third-party marketers. Enstar also feels like
it is the grass under the elephants, he said. “If the gas supply
contracts that we presented to the conm ssion had been approved,
we would not have this situation.” Enstar and these custoners
are stuck between the producers’ and the comm ssion’s separate
desires on pricing.

9: 36: 56 AM
CHAI R FRENCH noted that Senator Therriault and Senator Dyson had
j oi ned the hearing.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how nuch gas those 400 custoners
typically use.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF estimated it's between .8 Bcf/year and 1.2
Bcf/ year.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- Novenber 25, 2008



SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked how nuch gas the existing customers
use.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied the 2009 forecasted purchase is 32.1 Bcf.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how nmuch gas is available for Enstar
to use each year.

MR. SLAUGHTER restated that the forecast is 32.1 Bcf in 2009. He
continued to explain that Enstar buys gas under several
contracts: a Marathon APL-4 contract, which is a fixed volune of
5 Bcf; a Unocal contract of 19.5 Bcf for next year; the Beluga
contract <consisting of three producers - MJ&P, Conoco, and
Chevron — which is estimted at 4 Bcf. The other two contracts
woul d have supplied about 1.6 Bcf.

9:39:14 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the rmaximum anmount of gas
avai |l abl e to Enstar next year is 32.1 Bcf.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied there is sone flexibility wthin the
contracts. The way these contracts are structured to work is
that gas is purchased on a pro-rata basis based on the daily
forecast. This includes the | egacy contracts. He conti nued:

If it's warner then normal, we might buy 31.5, but
everyone’'s percentage at the end of the year would be

equal . If it's ~colder than nornmal, with these
contracts in place we had agreenents - and were
wor king toward agreements with others and one of our
other |egacy contracts — to go above the 32.1. These

contracts were all very specifically tailored to work
together with our |legacy contracts and it’'s been a
very arduous process that we’ ve been working through
with our current suppliers to make sure that these
contracts nmeshed very nicely.

9:40: 23 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there would be enough gas for
current Enstar custonmers if the winter is very cold and demand
goes up to 35 Bcf.

MR. SLAUGHTER said a 10 percent increase would be a challenge
for the suppliers.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 13- Novenber 25, 2008



SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked how confident he is that there is
sufficient gas to supply current Enstar customers for the com ng
W nter.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied they ve thoroughly reviewed the forecasts
with their suppliers and the nunbers have been vetted. It's a
sound forecast, he said.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked who gets cut off in the event that
Enstar runs out of gas.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied they'd follow the tariff so industrial and
interruptible custonmers would be first. Realistically, the first
step would be to ask custoners to reduce consunption on cold
days.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI observed that running out of gas isn't the
problem it’'s the peak days.

MR. SLAUGHTER responded that it depends on the contract. For
exanple, the APL-4 contract is a set anount; next year it’'s 7
Bcf. In theory that contract could run out on Novenber 4 if it’'s
a cold year. Enstar has been working to bring flexibility into
its contracts to allow purchase of additional gas. Now in 2008
they are targeting to bring in the Mrathon APL-4 contract as
close to 9 Bcf as possible.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noted that .8 Bcf to 1.2 Bef is roughly one
thirtieth of the total gas supply, and asked if he’s saying that
Enstar doesn’t have that anmount of gas available for the 400
custoners.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied Enstar does not have enough gas under
contract to supply those custonmers wthout the two contracts
that are open before the conm ssion. “Those are custoners that
chose to leave the system and have benefited from the | ower
price of gas that Aurora Power was providing them” Wth the two
contracts there will be avail abl e gas.

9:43:33 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the gas that Aurora Power provided
ran thru Enstar gas |ines.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF said yes, but not all of Aurora’s gas runs
through Enstar lines. Aurora Power Resources is a third-party
mar keter that procures gas from Aurora Gas. The businesses are
owned separately but have the sane president. Aurora Gas sells

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- Novenber 25, 2008



to other conpanies and the gas does not run through the Enstar
system

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the gas that Taco Loco and
Continental Auto G oup receive runs through Enstar gas |ines.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF sai d yes.
SENATOR W ELECHOANSKI asked if Enstar collects a tariff on that.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF said yes; Enstar nakes the same anount if they
sell their gas or haul sonmeone else’s. “W are financially
indifferent.”

9:44: 43 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if Enstar knew about this potenti al
problemin July when they were before the RCA

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF said yes.

MR. SLAUGHTER added that there was specific and substanti al
di scussi on about Aurora Power returning custoners and they were
included in the forecast. At that time the Aurora attorney
guestioned including those custonmers in the forecast contending
that there was no indication that those custoners would return
“W believe it was prudent, it was proper to include those
vol unes because in the past they have returned custonmers.” In
Novenber or Decenber 2006 Aurora gave back about 500 custoners,
and there was reason to believe these [400] custoners would be
dropped and returned to Enstar.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if they were directed to give the
attorney general or the RCA a |list of those comercia
cust oners.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied he doesn’t believe so.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF added that request was not nade during the
course of the hearing.

SENATOR W ELECHOMNSKI asked if there was a reason Enstar didn't
send notification in July.

MR.  SLAUGHTER replied it’s wup to Aurora to decide which

custoners to notify. Enstar has a list of all the Aurora
custoners but they didn’t know which, it any, would be retained.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- Novenber 25, 2008



9:46: 36 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI opined it is short notice to drop service
now i f people potentially knew about this in July.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF said that in the hearing Enstar stated the
belief that this would happen. During the hearing Aurora' s
representatives challenged the belief that Aurora would return
custonmers. You're asking the wong people, he said. He
conti nued:

W were notified by Aurora in October that they were
going to return custoners effective Decenber 1 and
provided us the list just the week of Halloween so we
got about as nuch notice as anyone el se other than the
fact that we had a strong suspicion, and had for sone
time, that we would be getting some, if not all, of
t hose custonmers back.

9:47: 38 AM

SENATOR HUGG NS expressed optimsm that this neeting would
provide a catalyst to solve the problem He asked for a
description of the tineline starting when Enstar began
negoti ations |eading through the RCA process, wth particular
enphasis on what the RCA said in |ate Cctober.

9:48: 22 AM

MR. SLAUGHTER expl ained that Enstar began negotiating for the
2009 volunes in 2004, bringing the APL-5 Mrathon contract
forward. Unfortunately, the RCA did not accept the contract.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if that means that the 2008 contracts are
actually the second round.

MR SLAUGHTER said that's correct.

SENATOR HUGE@ NS asked the timefrane for the first set of
contracts.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF explained that the first contract was wth
Marat hon and it <called for starting deliveries in 2009 and
filling through 2016. Negoti ati ons began in 2004, were submtted
to the RCA for approval in 2005 and were rejected in 2006.

“Those contracts would have provided 100 percent of our needs—
including gas for returning transport custoners if we received
any—for 2009 all the way through 2016.~

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 16- Novenber 25, 2008



SENATOR HUGA NS asked how the price of gas in that initial
contract would conpare to contracts in effect at the tine and to
t he new contract.

MR.  SLAUGHTER replied that the price for 2009 would be
approximately $8.96, which is the current estimated average cost
of gas so it would fall in the mddle. Conparatively, the Beluga
contract for next year will be priced at $11.20.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked for an update on the current negoti ations.

MR. SLAUGHTER explained that in early 2007 Enstar sent out an
RFP for gas. Union said it didn't have gas available. Chevron
and Marathon were the other respondents and negotiations began
with those conpanies for 2009 volunes. Contracts were signed and
submtted to the RCA in April and the hearing was schedul ed for
the last week of July. The hearing |asted about two and a half
weeks and Enstar requested a final ruling by October 31. The RCA
approved the tw contracts conditioned on the anendnents to
change the pricing provisions of both contracts. Decenber 1 is
the deadline for updating the RCA as to whether negotiations on
t he amendnments were successf ul

SENATOR HUGA NS cal culated that there were about 30 days to
renegoti at e.

MR. SLAUGHTER said that’'s correct and they have net with both
conpani es.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about the status of those negotiations.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied they are ongoing and confidential, but
they will file with the comm ssion next Monday [Decenber 1].

9:52: 20 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS questioned what would happen on Decenber 1 if
the negotiations did not go well. Wen no response was
forthcom ng, he turned the question around and asked what woul d
happen on Decenber 1 if the negotiations go well. He added that
that’s what he believes will happen.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied if negotiations go well there wll be
something to submt to the commission that it can approve. “Then
begi nning January 1°' we will be on our nerry way, and we won’t
be having this discussion any further.”

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- Novenber 25, 2008



SENATOR HUGA NS asked for a description of the nechanism for
produci ng extra gas on cold days so everyone's pilot |ight stays
lit. He recalled that diverting gas from the LNG plant is one
opti on.

MR. SLAUGHTER said yes; these contracts had specific |anguage
that the producers would agree to divert gas fromthe LNG pl ant.
There’s also specific |anguage that the producers would work
with Enstar for regasification so gas can be taken off to help
cover those peak days in the future. He reiterated that as
Enstar buys gas as it gets <colder, it continues to buy
proportionately from each supplier so everyone provides their
equal share.

SENATOR HUGG NS asked if storage is a potential solution going
forward

MR. SLAUGHTER said yes; the Marathon contract provided the
benefit of buying gas for storage at a reduced rate.

9:54: 29 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS referred to the discussion about the anount of
gas the 400 custoners typically use and asked if .8 is use on an
average day and 1.2 use on a cold day.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF clarified that that's the annual usage of those
custoners. He estimated that the peak daily requirement would be
between 7,000 and 8,000 cubic feet. Enstar uses approximately
270,000 Mef on the absol ute peak day, he added.

SENATOR HUGA NS questioned how long it would it take to restart
the systemif all the pilot lights were to go out.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF said that after a total system crash it would
take nonths to purge the air from and relight or restart every
appl i ance.

9:56: 22 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS said that although he firmy believes this wll
be solved, it’s only an interim solution because it’s about

supply. W have to look at in-state gas and get on with solving
the problemfor the long term he said.

9:57: 04 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if Enstar disagrees with sone of the
commi ssion’ s findings.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- Novenber 25, 2008



MR. DI ECKGRAEFF replied they aren't in a position to discuss
that since it’s still an open docket proceeding. They did agree
with the RCA finding that Enstar was prudent in entering into
t he gas supply contracts.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if they have responded to any of the
points with public docunents.

MR DI ECKGRAEFF replied t hey filed a petition for
reconsi deration on extending the tine of the order. That’'s the
only thing they ve addressed thus far.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted that on page 32 it says that as part of
the settlement agreenent, ConocoPhillips and Marathon comm tted
to act in good faith, in their sole discretion, to conplete gas
supply agreenments with Enstar that the commssion would find
acceptable. He said that leads him to believe that there are
ongoi ng discussions to resolve this issue. If not he believes

the state has an action agai nst ConocoPhillips and Mrathon for
the export license. It’'s not in the state’'s best interest to
shut that industrial use down, but, he said, it seens that the
significant |leverage that the state has will play in Enstar's

favor. He asked if they have an opinion on that.

9:59: 14 AM

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF reiterated that they <can't discuss ongoing
negoti ations. W have had discussions with the Departnment of
Nat ural Resources, he added.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if they believe that the term nol ogy
that was in the contract would have led to third-party suppliers
com ng in.

MR. SLAUGHTER said that Enstar has had discussions with the new
i ndependent Arnstrong oil conpany as recently as |ast week about
their new North Fork field. They are very interested in selling
gas to Enstar. At this point Arnmstrong is |ooking what comes of
these contracts to determ ne their decision process.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if Arnstrong was agreeable wth
supplying gas at the rates under the ternms of the original
contract.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied they were interested in seeing market

price for their gas. “That’s one of the reasons why they are up
here | ooking in Cook Inlet,” he said.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- Novenber 25, 2008



10: 00: 46 AM

CHAIR FRENCH asked if they know the rough ratio between gas
bei ng exported to Japan as LNG and the anmount that’'s used in the
greater Anchorage bow .

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF recalled that at full capacity the plant uses
85-95 Bcf/year and the local utility market for hone heating and
power is about 70 Bcf/year.

CHAIR FRENCH noted that it’s roughly 50:50 with just a little
nore bei ng exported. He asked for Enstar’s total annual sales.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied it will be about 32 Bcf in 2009.

CHAIR FRENCH asked who, other than Enstar, supplies gas to
commercial users in the Anchorage bow .

MR. SLAUGHTER | isted: Aurora Power, MinCo, and ConocoPhillips —
supplying gas to their building.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if they have an idea of Aurora’s vol une.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF replied it was about 1.4 Bcf/year before they
shed the 400 custoners

CHAI R FRENCH observed that that is a large portion of that . 8-
1.2 Bcf/year.

MR. SLAUGHTER said they aren't going out of business, they
sinmply decided to sell gas to different custoners.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if Aurora is picking up other Enstar
cust oners.

MR. SLAUGHTER said no; beginning January 1 they have a contract
to sell to Fairbanks Natural Gas and they're selling to one
ot her industrial custoner.

CHAIR FRENCH noted that Senator Welechowski said that Aurora
accounts for between three to five percent of the gas sales in
t he Anchorage bow .

10: 03: 30 AM
MR. SLAUGHTER replied that sounds about right.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if Aurora is regulated by the RCA

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- Novenber 25, 2008



MR. SLAUGHTER said no; Aurora Power is a third-party narketer
and Aurora Gas is an exploration and producti on conpany.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that page 33 of the RCA order says
that when the LNG export was granted, the producers were allowed
to export up to 98.1 Bcf [of LNG between April 2009 and March
2011]. He said he finds it ironic that there’s a squabble over
.8-1.2 Bcf/year for in-state use when 98.1 Bcf is being exported
to Japan.

MR. SLAUGHTER clarified that there is plenty of gas available in
Cook Inlet, but the RCA nust approve the purchase price of the
gas. Enstar is a regulated utility and it has to be able to
recover costs to stay in business so those contracts nust be
approved to go forward. The LNG plant provides backup and is
integral to Enstar’s future plans, which is one reason they
supported that |icense extension wth the state. During the RCA
heari ng they discussed how the LNG plant figures into the plans
to build a Iine fromthe Foothills. Wthout an industrial tenant
there isn't enough demand in Cook Inlet to consider any North
Sl ope or Foothills gas. Now Agriumis out the market and the LNG
plant isn’t running at capacity either. The contracts very
clearly stated that there was agreenent to divert the gas, but
wi thout that plant the deliverability drops and there would be
nore probl ens on cold days.

10: 06: 47 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for Agriumis total volune and peak
capacity on an annual basis.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF stated that at peak capacity, before any
shortages, Agrium was using 55-60 Bcf/year.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked what they estinmate it costs to
produce 1 Mf of gas. He added that he’s heard it’s between 50
cents and $1. 00.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF responded that isn't realistic. He's seen
information in a lawsuit indicating that for a | ow cost producer
and taking enbedded costs into account, it’s three to four tines
hi gher than that range.

SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI asked if that means that it’'d be about
$4. 00.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF reiterated that he’'s seen nunbers in a |awsuit
that are three to four tinmes higher than the nunbers he quot ed.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- Novenber 25, 2008



10: 08: 18 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI cal cul ated that would be between $1.50 and
$4. 00, and added that Cook Inlet residential users currently are
payi ng $8. 96/ Mcf .

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF said Enstar’s price effective January 1 is $8.99
and the price for the Beluga field is $11.96.

10: 08: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked what Enstar will do and what wl|
happen to the 400 custoners conme January 1 if these contracts
aren’t negoti at ed.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied he has every reason to believe there wll
be a successful outcone. Gas is available in Cook Inlet; it's
just a matter of who supplies the gas and who buys it.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked if Enstar has made a decision
about what it will do in the event of the worst case scenari o.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF said that Enstar has discussed the possibility
of providing about back-room and billing support if the gas
producers were to sell directly to those custoners.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked if she’'s hearing that there is a
plan in place so that these custoners won't be shut off.

MR. SLAUGHTER replied that continues to be evaluated. There is
no desire for custoners to have no gas. Decenber 1 is the
deadl i ne and nore deci sions have to be made thereafter.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM sai d she too hopes the negotiations are
successful, and asked if a representative from Aurora would be
testifying.

CHAIR FRENCH said Aurora isn't regulated and wasn't invited
t oday.

10: 11: 21 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if they believe that Enstar’s success
is tied to the long-termoperation of the LNG pl ant.

MR. SLAUGHTER said that’s correct. H's understanding is that
it’s easier on the wells if production is even and steady, which
is why an industrial load is necessary for a bullet line to be
feasible. “You're not going to have .5 B/day pipeline and only

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -22- Novenber 25, 2008



run it with a 100 mllion in there.” For that reason Enstar
views the LNG plant as an anchor tenant. In the short termit’s
necessary to have the ability to divert gas going to the plant
and they’'re working with the producers to put regasification
equi pnent on the tanks so gas can be pulled off on cold days in
order to neet peak deliverability needs. The producers have
agreed to work on that because deliverability continues to be a
probl em as the Cook Inlet fields decline.

SENATOR THERRI AULT remarked that it's also in the state's best
interest to have even steady production. AOGCC would |ikely step
inif production fluctuated wldly.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF added that the flat load helps snooth the
utility’s wild swings between summer and winter and nmakes the
overall takes easer to handle. It’'s in the community s best
interest and it hel ps to ensure that everything keeps running.

10: 14: 41 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT commented that although you're engaged in
tough negotiations with the producers, you aren’'t here to cast
them as the villains because you need themlong termto stay in
busi ness.

MR. SLAUGHTER responded that's one way to represent it.

CHAI R FRENCH asked for a summary of one or two points that have
to be worked out between now and January 1 to ensure that these
400 customers have a supply of gas.

10: 15: 29 AM
MR. SLAUGHTER said the key point is price.

CHAIR FRENCH rem nded them that although their custonmers hope
Enstar wll negotiate a tough price, ultinmately they have to
heat their businesses.

MR. SLAUGHTER stated that Enstar believes it brought forward
contracts with fairly negotiated prices. The RCA ruled that
there needs to be a change in the pricing structure and
negotiations wth ConocoPhillips and Marathon are ongoing so
that there is sonething ready next week.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if it’'s fair to say that there's
enough gas for all Cook Inlet consuners next winter and it cones
down to whether or not ConocoPhillips believes it’s making
enough profit.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 23- Novenber 25, 2008



MR. SLAUCGHTER said he isn’'t sure that profit is the right word,
but there is sufficient gas available. He continued:

Aurora has the gas but they' re choosing not to keep
t hose custonmers. Marathon and Conoco have the gas and
we’'ve negotiated what we believe to be a fair price
and now we're having to go back and renegotiate again
with those two entities.

MR. DI ECKGRAEFF summari zed that the RCA believes that one price
is correct and the producers believe that another price is
correct. Enstar doesn't make noney either way; it nakes noney by
nmovi ng the gas. W brought contracts to the RCA that we thought
had reasonable prices and were approvable. The RCA thought
otherwise and sent us back to the producers to renegotiate
prices that the RCA determ ned.

10: 17: 50 AM

CHAI R FRENCH remarked that when he read the order he noted that
the RCA adnoni shed Enstar for testifying in favor of an export
license before it had taken care of its own custoners. It’'s
common sense to nake sure you' re |ocked down before you agree
with shipping gas to Japan. “95 to 98 percent of the people that
operate businesses in the Anchorage bow rely on Enstar so |
guess | would echo that remark | saw in the order,” he said.
Second, he said he doesn’t know who dreaned up the letter that
was sent out but from his perspective it wasn’t a good idea. It
was a ham handed effort to notify custoners of a supply shortage
when there really is gas out there. The likelihood that you’l
shut the valve on those 400 businesses is vanishingly small and
you should work it out, he said.

The four nmjor Anchorage businesses that canme here today are
represented by people who would be better off at their offices
wor ki ng on what they do best, which is selling cars or cooking
tortillas. Senator Huggins is correct that we’'ll hit this point
again and again over the next few years and you need to find a
different way to work out vyour differences wth the major
producers, he said. Although you may feel that you' re part of

the grass, he said he doesn’'t think Enstar is that small. “Maybe
you're a baby elephant conpared to the bigger elephants, but
you're not grass and so | hope you' Il take a different approach

next tinme.” He thanked M. Slaughter and M. D eckgraeff for
com ng.

10: 20: 27 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 24- Novenber 25, 2008



CHAIR FRENCH said M. Stoller with DOL will talk about RCA O der
No. 8.

10: 20: 40 AM
BOB STOLLER, Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law said
his client is the RCA conm ssioners. He assists wth

adjudications if the RCA orders are challenged on appeal and
defends those orders before the appellate courts. Senator French
asked him to provide a layman’s summary of Oder No. 8. 1In
anticipation of questions, yesterday he enmailed a detailed
functional outline of the order and a summary of the hearing.

MR. STOLLER relayed that the hearing lasted two and a half weeks
and four active parties were in front of the conmmssion wth
Enstar sponsoring their gas supply contracts. Chugach Electric
participated in the proceeding as did Aurora Power Resources
through counsel. He noted that the DOL also functions in a
consuner protection capacity <called regulatory affairs and
public advocacy (RAPA) and so to avoid any appearance of a
conflict of interest he doesn't talk to RAPA people and they
don't talk to him The sole exception is when they' re both on
t he sane side of an issue under appeal

10: 23: 03 AM

MR. STOLLER said that the conm ssion takes this very seriously.
Since U-08-58 is an open docket in front of the comm ssion, DCL
has advised the comm ssioners not to speak publicly about this
matter. And because it could result in litigation, he nust be
ci rcunspect in what he says. “Nothing that | say here today can
in anyway shape or form qualify what is in Order No. 8.7 The
order has to speak for itself and the statutes governing the
commi ssion on appeal require that. The statutes substantially
say that the comm ssion’ s conclusions of |aw nust be supported
by findings of fact and those nust be supported by substanti al
evidence on the record. The commission states its findings
repeatedly throughout the order and the order explicitly sets
out the evidence upon which those findings are nade.

10: 24: 27 AM
MR. STOLLER said he first would respond to Representative
Dahl strom s question about what the comm ssion will do about the

situation that has devel oped. The comm ssion has discussed this
matter and al though he is not at liberty to provide substance to
t hose confidential discussions, the crystallizing event will be
what is in Enstar’s Decenmber 1 filing. Watever is in that
filing, the conmssion will take swift action thereafter. Either
Enstar will have negotiated the price caps that were ordered or

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 25- Novenber 25, 2008



it won't. The rational for ordering the price caps is that from
the comm ssion’s perspective, the producers have nmarket power
that they use to extract a price that is too high.
AS 42.05.431(a) specifies that if the commssion finds that
anything affecting a rate is not reasonable, the conmm ssioner
shal |l establish a reasonable rate by order. That statute is set
out on page 15 of the decision and is the | egal basis upon which
t he deci si on was made.

MR. STOLLER added that although the factual basis for the
decision is set out in great detail, there isn't a statute that
specifically requires Enstar to bring the contracts to the
commi ssion. The Legislature does not require a utility to make
its supply arrangenents available to the comm ssion for review
and approval in advance. “It’s not a matter of statute by which
Enstar canme to the commission; it's a matter of their tariff.”
He recalled that in the 1980s Enstar nodified its tariff and
asked the conmission to approve their supply contracts in
advance and | ooking forward rather than comng to the comm ssion
in the context of a rate case years after their contracts had
been executed and have the comm ssion say that in that context
they acted inprudently. M. D eckgraeff spoke to that in his
presentation this norning and the reference to that is on page
5, Iine 10 of the order. The tariff section is cited in footnote
20. In summary he said it’s the tariff that brings Enstar to the
commission in this context, and it’s the statute that gives the
commi ssion the power and authority to approve the contracts and
require the price cap.

10: 27: 17 AM
CHAIR FRENCH asked if the price cap is a dollar limt above
which the contract can’t go or just a different way of arriving
at what the price should be by wusing different points of
nmeasur enent .

MR. STOLLER replied you're exactly correct; it'’s a different
nmechani sm for determ ning price. The conm ssion characterizes it
as a dynam c nmarket-driven cap. It has to do with which narkets
will be used as the neasuring instrunents. The conm ssion
concluded that the array of nmarkets that the producers selected
do not share simlar characteristics as those found in the Cook
Inlet basin. It is unique in that it is the only natural gas
produci ng area that exports gas to foreign countries and as such
the comm ssion concluded that a different set of market tests
should be used for the pricing nechanism He said he is not at
liberty to characterize it because he mght do so incorrectly
and to defend it he nmust do so as it’s witten.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 26- Novenber 25, 2008



10: 28: 34 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he generally thinks of the tariff as the
cost of shipping product through the pipe and the different
pricing nethodology is the price of the gas going into the pipe.
He asked, “Do we have two conponents here?”

MR. STOLLER clarified that a tariff is the witten terns and
conditions of service that a utility nakes available to nenbers
of the public. It includes the whole array of terns and
conditions, including price provisions. It is a public docunent
that is available for review on the commission’s website. This
applies to all utilities that the comm ssion regul ates; they all
have tariffs. Sonetines tariff is used to nean the price that
the utility asks for its service. As M. D eckgraeff pointed
out, Enstar nekes noney transporting the gas not on the cost of
the gas. The cost is a pass through.

From the comm ssion’ s perspective, when it is asked to approve a
contract that raises Enstar’s weighted average cost of gas
(WACOG), Enstar wants the conmission to approve in advance.
Surprisingly enough, although it is wthin the Legislature’'s
purview to articulate the standards that the conm ssion should
enploy in determning how to evaluate gas supply contracts in
the future, it has chosen no to do so. Currently the conm ssion
nmakes deterninati ons based on evidence submtted during a public
heari ng process.

10: 31: 13 AM

MR. STOLLER rel ayed that he brought the conmm ssion’s record for
the commttee to review. The transcript has about 2,400 pages of
testinmony and the entire record consists of between 5,000 and
6,000 pages of rmaterials. The conmmission distilled that
information into the 35 page order and three concurring opinions
from comm ssioners G ard, Johnson, and W/ son.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for sonme idea of the difference in
price under the comm ssion’s nethodol ogy versus the negotiated
met hodol ogy.

MR. STOLLER replied it’s enough to be significant but he
couldn't supply an authoritative answer right now “I’Il be
happy to ook that up and get back to you later today if you'd
like me to do that,” he said.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he’'s interested in knowing how nmnuch
difference there is.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -27- Novenber 25, 2008



10: 32: 35 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what standards the RCA uses to
determ ne a reasonable rate of return for the gas producers. He
noted that the FERC sets pipeline rates in the neighborhood of
14 percent.

MR. STOLLER pointed out that the Legislature has not enpowered
the comm ssion to regulate producers. The production of gas is
not a public utility service as defined in AS 42.05.990. The
Legislature has defined a public wutility service as the
transm ssion and distribution of gas, not the production of gas.
The commi ssion was not trying to deternmine a fair rate of return
for ConocoPhillips and Marathon; it was trying to find a fair
mar ket surrogate for the gas given that there isn’'t a w de-open
and functioning willing buyer/willing seller market in the Cook
Inl et basin. He described that as the crux of the dil emm.

MR. STOLLER said that the conm ssioners are acutely aware of the
situation; once Enstar nakes the Decenber 1 report on where it
is wwth the producers, there will be a record upon which to take
t hought ful acti on.

10: 34: 49 AM
CHAI R FRENCH recogni zed that Representative Gara had joined the
nmeeti ng.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said we’ve heard again and again that we
own the gas and oil and we lease it to the producers who are
entitled to a reasonable rate of return, and you' re saying the
comm ssion doesn’t currently enploy that standard.

MR. STOLLER replied as foll ows:

The Legislature hasn’t given the commssion the
authority to enploy that standard vis-a-vis the
producers. The commission is a creature of the
Legislature. Ratemaking is a legislative function and
the commssion is a creature of the statute. And so
what the commission may do is a function of what the
Legislature has put forth in 42.05 for wutilities,
42.06 for pipelines and the powers that are reasonably
inferable from the legislative provisions as the
Suprene Court has ruled. But the comm ssion cannot act
|awful Iy beyond those confines. If the conmm ssion were
to attenpt to set a rate of return for ConocoPhillips
or Marathon through the device of these contracts,

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 28- Novenber 25, 2008



that would be a questionable action. | don’t want to

second-guess an argunent | mght have to nake on
appeal, but as | sit here, | think that it would be a
stretch to find that the comm ssion has the authority
to do that.
10: 36: 50 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the state has an action it could
take if ConocoPhillips or Marathon were to say they didn't want

to sell gas at a particular rate and the state thought the rate
was reasonabl e.

MR. STOLLER replied it’s a nore appropriate question for the
Department of  Natural Resources (DNR) and the assistant
attorneys general who work with DNR, but he thinks that the
state would have sone |leverage. In the md 1970s the state did
take its royalty share of North Cook Inlet gas in-kind and nmade
it available to Enstar’s predecessor. The constitutional
constraint is that that resource, upon which the state’s in-kind
share or in-value share is based, belongs to all people of the
state and the constitution provides that the state nust manage
its natural resources for the maxi num benefit of all its people.
That nmeans that the state cannot take any less on a sale of
royalty in kind than if it took the royalty in value. That issue
was litigated for vyears in the Alaska North Slope royalty
[itigation.

10: 38: 36 AM
CHAIR FRENCH said it puts a danper on the idea that the state
can sell gas cheaper to Al askans than on the market.

MR. STOLLER said that’s right. The business problem that the
conmm ssion was confronted with is how to determine a fair value
for the gas when there isn't a functioning market in the |ocal
area that has lots of willing buyers and sellers to establish a
clear armis length market price for the gas that Enstar should
pay and pass along to the ratepayers. Based on the evidence,
including the evidence that ConocoPhillips and Marathon
exercised market power and constrained Enstar’s ability to
negotiate, the commission said it thinks that the pricing
mechani sm - which is characterized as a cap, but actually is a
fl oati ng and dynam ¢ nechani sm —shoul d be applied in this case.

SENATOR THERRI AULT observed that the right to regulate the

utility stens fromthe fact that the state sovereign established
the utility as a nonopoly. So it’s strange here to reach through

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 29- Novenber 25, 2008



the utility to the producer, but he supposes that it’s because
it’s a conponent of that tariff.

MR. STOLLER interrupted to agree. It’s Enstar’s tariff and they
don’t want to be in a position where they mght cone in for a
rate case several years after they've entered into a gas supply
contract and have the comm ssion say that the negotiated price
was too high and they aren’t allowed to collect that nmuch from
the ratepayers. “From Enstar’s perspective that would be a
terrible conundrum and that’s why they nodified their tariff and
that’s the instrunment which brings us to this proceeding.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT referred to Enstar’'s letter and pointed out
that if the custoners had to negotiate their own supplier but
they could put the gas on Enstar’s transportation system the
RCA woul d have no control over the price those custoners pay for
the gas, but the delivery nechanismwould still be regul at ed.

MR. STOLLER agreed; that's the market dynamic by which Aurora
has made gas available to its custoners. The Legislature hasn’'t
defined the production and sale of the combdity as a public
utility service, which is why the conmmssion has not had
regul atory authority over Aurora. It is free to enter or exit
the market w thout the sane constraints on it that Enstar has.
Enstar’s perspective is that it is the provider of last resort
and they want to be assured that they will be able to recover
what they pay for gas. He told Representative Dahlstrom that he
w Il see that she receives a response to her letter.

10: 42: 37 AM

SENATOR HUGE NS noted that M. Dieckgraeff and M. Slaughter
testified that the price of gas wunder the original contract
woul d be in the “shot group” of what their gas is today.

MR. STOLLER said he has no reason to doubt their testinony, but
he hasn’t done research on it so he can’t speculate. He offered
to do the research.

SENATOR HUGE NS said he would appreciate that because he' d |ike
to hear about |essons |learned fromthat contract negotiation and
ultimate di sapproval.

MR. STOLLER agreed to do sone research.
10: 44: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA commented that it's a conundrum that there’s
enough gas to export yet there’'s a shortage in Anchorage. He

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 30- Novenber 25, 2008



asked if the state’s royalty-in-kind rights extend to the
natural gas that’s being exported.

MR. STOLLER replied that’s outside his area of expertise so he
can’t speculate. He said he would quibble with the assunption
that there’s a shortage of gas. There are enough nol ecul es of
gas, he said, the issue is the price of the gas and who
determ nes the price.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked who woul d know t he answer.

MR. STOLLER referred himto the Departnment of Natural Resources
and the oil, gas and m ning section of the Departnent of Law.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if the RCA will take a position on the
next export |icense.

MR. STOLLER replied that AS 42.05.141 authorizes the RCA to
advocate and support the state’'s interest in proceedings beyond
itself, but it would probably have to be coordinated with the
adm ni strati on.

10: 46: 34 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if he knows of any other jurisdiction
where the producer of a resource like this has been declared to
be a regulated utility.

MR. STOLLER replied there nmay be, but he isn't aware of any
jurisdiction where that’s happened.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the statutory directive to the RCA
is to look only at the tariff on the resource that’s being
delivered now or is there also a duty to look at the systemto
make sure that nore of the resource is produced.

MR. STOLLER replied the comm ssion's responsibility is a bal ance
between the |owest reasonable price and continuous reliable
service. The conm ssion mnust exercise its judgnent to bal ance
t hat tension

CHAI R FRENCH recapped that the next step is for Enstar to take
t he new pricing nmechani sm and nake a deal with the producers.

MR. STOLLER agreed that is what order No. 8 says. From the
conmmi ssion’s perspective the contracts are approved, but the
price termset forth was excessive so a new price term should be
inserted. The appendices set out in detail what the new price

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 31- Novenber 25, 2008



mechani sms are, and the comrission is waiting to hear from
Enstar on Decenber 1 as to how it is doing.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if we’d be out of the woods if Enstar, Conoco
and Marathon went out in the hall and |ooked at the new price
mechani sm and made a deal and shook hands.

MR. STOLLER said yes.

At ease from 10:49:17 AMto 10:59:11 AM

CHAI R FRENCH said that representatives from Conoco and Marat hon
are next to testify. He noted that sonme nenbers of the public
have signed up to testify but there is only tine to hear from
those who were specifically invited today. He apologized and
suggested that they email their coments. They would be given
consi derati on.

11: 00: 05 AM

ERIC |SAACSON, Vice President for Commerci al Assets for
ConocoPhi | I'i ps, and DAN CLARK, Manager of the Cook Inlet Assets
for ConocoPhillips, introduced thensel ves.

MR. | SAACSON stated the following into the record:

W at ConocoPhillips have worked diligently wth
Enstar over the last 22 nonths and invested a |ot of
tinme and effort to develop a gas sales contract. A
contract that we believed would be acceptable to the
Regul atory Conm ssion of Alaska. And we nmade that
j udgnment based on indications inherent in the
commi ssion’s other recent decisions on gas pricing in
the inlet, and also upon the recommended pricing by
the regulatory affairs and public advocacy group
within the attorney general’s office, known as RAPA
These deci sions and recomendati ons are as foll ows:

* In 2001 the RCA approved a 450 Bcf contract
bet ween Enstar and Union that used Henry Hub as
the price basis. Henry Hub is the mmjor trading
hub in the Lower 48.

* In 2006 the RCA rejected the same pricing
mechani sm when the Enstar Marathon contract was
proposed. During that hearing RAPA put forward
what is known as the Cook Inlet Conposite Index,
ot herwise known as CICl. They put that forward as

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 32- Novenber 25, 2008



the proposed appropriate price for Cook Inlet
gas, which is well bel ow Henry Hub.

* Now in 2008 the RCA rejected what we brought
forward, which was CICl, as an appropriate price
for as long as LNG is being exported.

By this record, it’'s very difficult to determ ne what
pricing nodel the RCA will find acceptable for Enstar
to recover their costs. At one tinme even LNG was being
proposed as a possible index. Also consistent wth
these same past RCA rulings, we renoved the current
affects of transportation to production taxes and
incorporated the self inposed production price cap,
the CICl index, that had historically been bel ow Henry
Hub.

11: 02: 59 AM

The contract that we negotiated with Enstar also set
forth the framework for Enstar to work with us on
studies for wusing [the] LNG plant for future gas
storage. Basically to secure gas supply here to the
Anchor age bow .

We at ConocoPhillips certainly had no interest in
spending all the resource tinmne we did over that 22
nmont hs devel oping a contract that we did not believe
woul d be approved. Please appreciate M. Chairman that
our job in developing a contract that we thought would
be approved is significantly hindered by the |ack of
clarity and the inconsistent signals that t he
conmmi ssion sends to the industry.

M. Chairman, what the Cook Inlet needs now for its
long-term health is nore activity not |ess. How nany
i ndependents do you see actively exploring or
developing gas in the Cook Inlet today? To attract
this activity and in order to keep the Cook Inlet
alive into the future, we need to have a transparent
pricing nechanism that allows a fair nmarket price for
the investment in this basin in the Cook Inlet basin—
whi ch has distinct cost issues and distinct risk as
conpared to the Lower 48 basins, which were proposed
as pricing mechani sms.

Wth all that being said, ConocoPhillips is continuing

to work with Enstar to develop contractual terns that
we believe will resolve this issue. Additionally, we

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 33- Novenber 25, 2008



would |like to address the public’s concerns on the gas
deliverability that arose after many corporations and
busi nesses received Enstar’s witten conmmuni cati ons.

11: 05: 01 AM

The RCA stated that anple gas supplies existed in the
proposed contracts. These were scheduled to start
January 1, 2009 and supply Enstar’s uncontracted gas
needs for the next five years. Right now sone of the
concern is that after January 1 the gas goes away.
It’s there. In fact, there’s an existing RCA approved
contract that Enstar can call on for the needed gas in
2009. As many of you know the recent export extension
that we received has allowed ConocoPhillips to enbark
upon the |largest devel opnent program we have had in
the Cook Inlet for sonme tine. In 2008 and 2009 we pl an
to invest approximately $250 million gross to drill
wells in our North Cook Inlet unit and Beluga River
units to increase deliverability and gas resource in
t he Cook Inlet.

So to concl ude, ConocoPhi | I'i ps IS i nvesting
significant anounts of new capital in the Cook Inlet.
W want to see this issue resolved and are working
with Enstar to do so. W see the opportunity for
continued business investnment in the Cook Inlet, but
need to realize a market price conmensurate with the
realities of the cost and risk environnment associated
with working in the Cook Inlet basin.

11: 06: 38 AM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for information on the existing
contract that could be called on to fill the shortfall.

MR. | SAACSON explained that it’'s the Beluga River contract that
Enstar alluded to that goes through 2009.

MR. CLARK added that Enstar has the right to call on as much gas
as they need or desire. The issue is that above a certain point
it isnt guaranteed and what ConocoPhillips is saying is there
is a supply that it would nmake available if they called upon it.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what the price nechanism is on that
gas.

MR. CLARK said it’s indexed to the price of oil; it’s the one
that was quoted at $11.20

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 34- Novenber 25, 2008



SENATOR HUGGE NS observed that $11.20 is the highest gas price.
MR. | SAACSON agr eed.

CHAI R FRENCH said he can understand the frustration with having
the Henry Hub and Cook Inlet pricing mechanisnms approved and
t hen disapproved. Now there’s a third, RCA approved “basket,”
pricing mechanism laid out on page 28 of the order that uses
price points from the EIl Paso Perm an [Basin]; Panhandle [Tx.-
kla]; El Paso San Juan [Basin]; Kern Rver [Opal Plant]; and
TCPL Al berta, AECO-C. Enstar is now going to ask if you |l buy
off on that new pricing nmechanism he said. What it boils down
to and why there’s a hearing today is that 400 custoners out
there feel like they're getting |levered. Enstar thought it had a
deal and it doesn’t, and they'Il be asking you to agree to a
| ower price. “If the nmethod that the RCA has suggested to you
isnt a good one, what is?” It’'s a fair question, he said,
because if you're going to say no, | need an idea of where you
need to go with your gas prices to keep everybody warm and dry
this wnter.

MR. | SAACSON restated that the contracts they submtted used the
pricing mechanism that was recommended by RAPA in 2006 and the
mar ket dynam cs today also suggest hints of pricing nmechanisns.
He noted that Chevron/Union has chosen not to renew an option on
a contract that was 3 Bcf at Henry Hub price; at a recent
conference they basically quoted the high cost of drilling,
devel oping and exploring in the Cook Inlet. The cost to work in
the Cook Inlet has to be balanced by the nmarket price to

stinmulate activity. In conparison, the basket of basins that
were referenced in the RCA order are all in the Lower 48. In the
industry those are called a resource play because they have
al nost no risk. “The risk is how cheap you can drill because you
step fromlocation to location to location and find gas.” In the
Cook Inlet the costs are considerably nore. “W’'re drilling 9
well's, $250 mIlion gross, and there’'s considerable risk.”

CHAI R FRENCH asked how nmuch each well costs.

MR. | SAACSON replied it depends on the location and the field
Currently they're drilling in the North Cook Inlet and the
Beluga River field. It isn't a | ow cost environment.

MR. CLARK added that it's between $25 mllion and $30 mllion
per well.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 35- Novenber 25, 2008



CHAIR FRENCH referenced a presentation Chugach [Electric
Association, Inc.,] nade yesterday about the price difference
and asked if the negotiated $9 price would drop to about $7.40
under the RCA price cap.

MR. | SAACSON replied that's roughly correct; Enstar is quoting a
15 percent difference.

CHAI R FRENCH observed that the argunent is basically over a 15
percent price gap.

MR. | SAACSON replied, “Gven a certain set of assunptions about
what the various indices will do over tinme, but yes.”

11: 13: 25 AM

CHAI R FRENCH asked if he agreed with the characterization that a
little over half of the total supply in the Cook Inlet basin is
exported and a little less than half is burned |ocally.

MR. | SAACSON replied it looks like the total export of gas for
the basin will be about 45 Bcf in 2008.

CHAI R FRENCH questi oned how nuch will be sold to Enstar assum ng
the contracts are approved.

MR. CLARK replied it varies over tine but for 2009 it’s 1.1 Bcf.

CHAIR FRENCH reiterated that he’d trying to get an idea of how
much is exported conpared to how nuch is burned | ocally.

MR. CLARK said the existing contract fromthe Beluga River field
is scheduled to be roughly 4 Bcf for 2009. The contract for 1.1
Bcf is in addition to that.

CHAIR FRENCH calculated that ConocoPhillip’'s total sales to
Enstar for a year would be about 5 Bcf.

MR. | SAACSON said that is what the anticipated sales are for
next year.

CHAI R FRENCH conmented that Enstar nust buy the lion’s share of
gas for |ocal usage from Marat hon

MR. | SAACSON clarified that the gas actually cones from Union
under a previously approved contract.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 36- Novenber 25, 2008



MR. CLARK added it’s the 450 Bcf contract that was referenced
bef or e.

11:15: 04 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there has to be an adequate supply
of gas for in-state use before getting approval for export.

MR CLARK said that’'s correct.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI asked what ConocoPhillips predicted the
Cook Inlet reserves to be when they submtted their export
i cense.

MR. CLARK said he didn’t recall
SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI recalled it was about 1.5 trillion [Bcf].
MR. | SAACSON said he renmenbers it was about 1.7 [Bcf].

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if that’s roughly a 20-year reserve
when wei ghed agai nst the Cook Inlet demand.

MR. | SAACSON sai d he believes that’s about right.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if a typical gas reserve |asts about
8 years.

MR. | SAACSON said he understands that a typical Lower-48 reserve
| asts between eight and ten years.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI observed that there’'s plenty of gas in the
Cook Inlet.

MR. | SAACSON agreed that the avail able supply is adequate.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if he has an idea what reserves are
expected fromthose nine wells.

MR. | SAACSON said they obviously have an idea after |ooking at
the econom cs, but from a conpetitive standpoint t hat
information is confidential. The issue for the Cook Inlet is
deliverability and that's the essence of the need for the LNG
plant. As previously nentioned, a flat profile is inportant to
keep wells from being damaged by production swings. “Drilling
the wells that were being drilled are for deliverability
reasons.”

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 37- Novenber 25, 2008



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what Chevron is doing with their gas
if they didn't submit a bid to deliver gas to Enstar.

MR. | SAACSON replied, “I wouldn't pretend to know what a
conpetitor is doing.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked where anyone drilling in the Cook
Inlet would sell their gas in a market that, other than the LNG
plant, is stranded.

MR. | SAACSON clarified that Chevron didn't exercise a future
option; it’'s not gas for today and he doesn’t know what their
deliverability status will be in the future.

11:18:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he understands the problem of not
exporting the gas, but he's interested in knowi ng how |long the
supply of gas that’'s being exported would last if it were used
only in state.

MR. | SAACSON replied it was quoted earlier that the in-state
usage is 70 Bcf/year and this year ConocoPhillips expects to
export 45 Bcf. The term of the license export is less than 100
Bcf so it would last | ess than a year.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if what’s remaining in those fields
woul d | ast |l ess than a year.

MR. | SAACSON poi nted out that he specifically asked how | ong the
gas that is already approved for export would |ast.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA clarified that he is interested in the
fields that ConocoPhillips is exporting from and how |ong that
gas would last if it were kept for in-state use.

MR | SAACSON said it's difficult to say because w thout exports
those fields would be shut down and there’s no way of know ng
what you’ d get back when they' re restart ed.

REPRESENTATIVE GARA said he was encouraged to hear that
negoti ations are ongoing. Referring to previous testinony about
having difficulty figuring out what standard the RCA applied
with the price cap, he asked if they could sit down and work
that out directly with the RCA. ..

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 38- Novenber 25, 2008



MR. | SAACSON clarified that ConocoPhillips isn't a party to the
RCA proceedi ngs. Those are between Enstar and the RCA, which is
t he conm ssion that sets Enstar’s rates.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said what he’'s trying to get at is whether
there’s sonmeone at the RCA that ConocoPhillips could talk with
since they said earlier that it’'s difficult to know what the RCA
order requires.

MR. CLARK replied that the order itself is clear. The past
rulings are confusing and nmake it difficult to cone forward with
a contract that could be approved. “Wth all the effort that we
di d, obviously we got it wong.”

MR. | SAACSON added that they’ ve understood the guidance all
along but the latest ruling has created confusion because it
appears to be another change in approach. “Each ruling of itself
is clear; the problemis that it’s changed over tine.”

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if the current ruling is clear.
MR. CLARK replied the ruling is clear as it's witten; what

isnt clear is the direction for basing price in a basin that
has | ess and | ess activity over tine.

11:22: 09 AM
CHAIR FRENCH said it's clear to him that the proposal roughly
anounts to a 15 percent reduction in his gas bill. That’s what

he took away from the narket basket pricing that the RCA is
pr oposi ng.

MR. | SAACSON said that Enstar put out information bullets on
that and it isn't 15 percent of your gas bill it's 15 percent of
this particular contract. For the average consuner the inpact of
having accepted the contract as originally filed was about
$2.00. Wth the RCA nmandated anendnents the average consuner’s
gas bill would be $17 | ower over a year.

CHAI R FRENCH acknow edged that in his letter he erroneously
extrapolated that term onto all the Cook Inlet contracts that
woul d cone up in the future.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI pointed out that that's for this year but

the savings for Cook Inlet consunmers would increase rather
dramatically in future years.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 39- Novenber 25, 2008



MR. | SAACSON agreed that the volumes on these contracts increase
over time so as a relative proportion it probably would change.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI added that there's also precedential value
for future contracts for in-state gas use.

MR. | SAACSON agreed. But, he said, it also sets a precedent for
attracting exploration and devel opnent in the Cook Inlet.

CHAI R FRENCH t hanked M. Isaacson and M. Clark for making tine
to come and talk to the conmmttee and welconed the
representative fromMarathon Q.

11: 24: 25 AM
CARRI LOCKHART, Manager of Production Operations for Marathon
Ol in Alaska, read the followng statenent into the record:

Mar at hon has operated in Alaska for nore than 54
years, and we value working with all stakeholders
toward achieving inproved gas supply security for the
people of Southcentral Alaska. To illustrate this,
over the past 6 years alone, Mirathon has invested
nore than $450 mllion in the Cook Inlet and has
drilled 65 producing wells. W have a total of
approximately 200 enployees and contract personnel
carrying out our daily operations, and these are high
paying, skilled positions that bring positive economc
inpact to the Peninsula. W are proud of our |ong-
standing business relationship in the conmmunity and
our denmonstrated track record of helping neet the
energy needs of |ocal narkets.

Consistent with this commtnment, Marathon and Enstar
have been engaged in active gas supply negotiations
for many years and have produced two conpleted
contracts for RCA approval, APL V and the current APL
VI. Unfortunately, neither have been approved despite
the hard work and efforts of all parties to achieve
the necessary balance of reliable, long-term supply
and conpetitive pricing for the required services. W
believed both agreenments provided a reasonable and
fair solution for Mrathon, Enstar, and nost of all,
for the custonmers of Enstar — the people of Al aska.

W are not here to bring you the industries’ problens

to solve. W are here today to continue the effort to
find solutions, and as part of this effort, to provide

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 40- Novenber 25, 2008



sonme added context around this matter in the hopes of
i ncreasing understanding of the nmarket realities we

are facing and the need for rational, fact-based
decision meking that wll be in the long-term best
interest of all stakeholders. The issues we face

cannot be boiled down to sinplistic solutions. These
are conplex matters that denmand careful consideration
of the long term consequences of all decisions that
are made. | want to assure you that we are commtted
to doing our part to reach the best possible outcone
for all concerned.

11: 26: 47 AM
In this regard, we are once again working with Enstar,
for the third time, to reach an agreenent that will be

acceptable to the RCA, and there will undoubtedly be
nore effort to follow with other Al askan utilities.

However, | would be remss if | left you with the
inpression that all is well. It is not. The process of
reaching closure on gas contracting has beconme very
troubl esonre. The lack of well defined standards has
made negotiating a contract difficult, wth nuch
uncertainty around what wll be acceptable to the
regul atory  agencies. Thi s, in turn, leads to
uncertainty for the utilities, for the gas producers
and for the area citizens. For the utilities including
Enstar, gas reliability is central to their custoner
service requirenents, yet we sit here today wth
uncertainty aboundi ng. For Marathon, we face an
investment commtnent in order to ensure this high
reliability, yet at the sane tinme we nust strive to
find ways to nmanage subsurface technical risk,
operational risk and escal ating cost of operations, as
well as the market volatility and uncertainty - These
all must be managed in a way that enables projects in
Cook Inlet to effectively conpete with other global
projects in our portfolio for finite funding -
especially in the challenging econony that we are
facing today. It is inperative that all parties to
t hese discussions understand the potential unintended
consequences  of meddling wth such a delicate
conmer ci al bal ance.

Marathon is the mnority owner of the Kenai LNG pl ant

with our partner and operator ConocoPhillips. Sone
have taken the view that this strategic facility

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -41- Novenber 25, 2008



should be closed to that gas export volumes can be
kept for |local consunption wth acconpanying price
reductions. Wile on the surface, this mght seem to
make sense, taking such action could have profoundly
negati ve consequences for Southcentral Al askan gas
custoners. As the State recognized, the plant provides
critical scale for upstream natural gas investnents in
the Cook Inlet and is a vital backup supply to the
local wutilities. It’s existence is essential despite
potentially different views on future Cook Inlet gas
supplies. For exanple, the partners are investigating
the potential for alternatives at the plant as a neans
to extend its life and add to energy security of cold

peak day supplies for Al askan consuners. It is
absolutely essential to wunderstand that while gas
resources can be plentiful, it matters very little if

the industry is not able to produce, transport, store,
and deliver the product at the right place at the
right time. This is an industry challenge for al
energy participants, not just producers. Nor is the
challenge nmerely to find an imediate solution at the
expense of future, long-termgas supply security.

Marathon will continue to work toward a solution in
pursui ng new gas contracts, but we cannot be expected
to do so alone. It takes trust, collaboration, and a
desire to understand that solutions will not conme from
shifting blame from party to party. W |look to be a
partner with industry, governnent, and regulators to
find these sol utions.

11:29: 58 AM

CHAI R FRENCH t hanked her for comng and for her statenent.

sai d
Law,

the last scheduled wi tnesses are from the Departnent
regul atory affairs and public advocacy section.

11: 30: 28 AM

He
of

STEVE DE VRIES, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Cvil D vision,
representing Regulatory Affairs and Public Advocacy (RAPA),
Departnment of Law, introduced hinself.

CRAI G TILLERY, Deputy Attorney GCeneral, Civil Di vi si on,
Depart nment of Law, introduced hinself.

MR. DE VRIES offered to answer questi ons.

11: 31: 20 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -42- Novenber 25, 2008



CHAI R FRENCH asked him to explain to the public what it is he
does. M. Stoller touched on how the tw roles within the
Departnent of Law (DOL) differ but sonme background would be
hel pful .

MR. DE VRIES explained that DOL is authorized by AS 44.23.020(e)
to have the attorney general participate as a party before the
RCA when the attorney general believes that it’s in the public’'s
interest. In those proceedings where it’s deened inportant for a
public advocacy role to be identified, the attorney general

participates as a public advocate. That role includes
representing the interest of consunmers and naking sure that
utilities get a square deal as well. It’s designed to ensure

that everybody is treated fairly and that reasonable results
come out of conmm ssion proceedings in which the attorney general
parti ci pates.

CHAI R FRENCH asked how to balance the tension between the two
needs. Enstar needs to nove gas and the consuner needs to pay as
little as necessary to keep the gas fields producing.

MR DE VRIES said that’s a critical question and the role is
basically to identify what a reasonable price is for gas. To
that end an outside econom st was hired to look at pricing and
t he precedent that the conm ssion had established and guidelines
it had provided in the past. In 2001, under the Unocal contract,
the comm ssion noved toward a market-based structure allow ng
the use of Henry Hub as a pricing proxy for Cook Inlet gas.
Before that time nost of Enstar’s supply contracts used a base
price wth escalators. The conm ssion allowed that market-based
structure Dbecause it was characterized as an exploration
contract, not harvesting existing reserves. Unocal had prom sed
to find new reserves to neet the perceived gas supply shortage
facing Cook Inlet. The next contract before the comm ssion was
the 2003 Northstar gas contract to supply gas to Homer. It too
was characterized by the comm ssion as an exploration contract
because additional delineation and devel opnent was required. The
next contract presented to the comm ssion was ATL V Marathon,
which the comm ssion rejected in 2006. It was not characterized
as an exploration contract. The pricing was based on Henry Hub
and the commission rejected it for a nunber of reasons anong
which was that a nexus for wusing Henry Hub for pricing Cook
I nl et gas was not denonstrated. Thus the viability of the Unocal
precedent didn't apply. The conm ssion did provide some gui dance
in that order, labeled U06-2 Oder No. 15. It said that any
contracts presented to the conmm ssion that are based on a market
proxy must have sone denonstrated nexus to Cook Inlet. In that

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 43- Novenber 25, 2008



docket expert testinony was presented and the attorney genera
first advanced what has been characterized as the Cook Inlet
Conposite Index. It provided a legitimte nexus to Cook Inlet by
providing five pricing points representing the |ogical places
that Al aska gas would trade if it were ever to be exported to
t he West Coast.

11: 37: 08 AM

CHAIR FRENCH referred to page 7 of U-08-58 Order No. 8 and asked
if TCPL Alberta [(AECO-C)], Canadian Border [(Sunas)], P&E
Malin, P&E Cty Gate [and SoCal Gas] were the pricing points
that made up the so-called Cook Inlet Conposite |ndex.

MR DE VRIES said yes; CICl was the proxy that the attorney
general first advanced in the APL V contract that the commi ssion
rejected in 2006. He enphasized that was the cap, the price for
gas that we thought would be fully conpensatory to producers to
neet Enstar’s substantial swi ng needs was that conposite price.
Today ConocoPhillips said they used that price in the current
contract, but they used it as the floor rather than the ceiling.
They built upon the CICl basket and added tiers that function to
i ncrease the price above what RAPA previously recommended.

11: 38:46 AM
CHAI R FRENCH asked if he's saying that the tier concept is new
in these contracts. “lIsn’t that a fairly standard natural gas

prici ng mechani sn®?”

MR DE VRIES replied, “Tier contracts are a new concept in
Al aska gas contracting for Enstar.”

SENATOR W ELECHOMNSKI asked if he said that the Unocal contract
was the first narket-based contract.

MR. DE VRIES said yes; it was the first contract that devel oped
a price by using a Lower 48 natural gas trading hub as a proxy
for pricing Cook Inlet gas.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI asked on what the RCA based pricing
deci si ons before the Unocal contract.

MR. DE VRIES replied he didn't litigate those cases and so he
didn’t have an answer.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he agrees or disagrees with the

producers’ testinony that the conm ssion has been inconsistent
in applying pricing standards.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -44- Novenber 25, 2008



MR DE VRIES said it could be viewed that way, but there is a
thread that explains what the conm ssion has done and why they
have done it. Lessons from the earlier Unocal and Northstar
contracts were that it would allow Henry Hub based pricing for
expl oration contracts.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  questioned whether Unocal and Northstar
actually did nmuch expl oration.

MR. DE VRIES replied sone figures indicate that Unocal spent in
excess of $200 mllion, but he can’t say how nuch went toward
exploration and exploration related efforts.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if the standard the conm ssion
adopted will encourage investnment in the Cook Inlet for further
gas expl orati on.

MR DE VRIES replied he isn't qualified to answer that question.

CHAIR FRENCH said it’s fair to point out that you re |ooking at
this fromthe perspective of Enstar and the consuner.

11:41: 43 AM
MR. DE VRIES said that what he can say is that the pricing proxy
that the conmission structured is conpetitive with what 1is
obtained in producing hubs in the Lower 48. “So from that
perspective it appears to be certainly [a] viable neans of
conparison.”

CHAIR FRENCH asked if it's sinpler to say that he doesn't
believe that the producers wll |ose noney under this pricing
structure.

MR DE VRIES replied he can’'t answer that question. “Evidence
regarding the producers’ cost to do business in the Cook Inlet
was not produced nor discussed nor a matter that was before the
conmmi ssi on.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT remarked that this function of the attorney
general is to look out for the consunmer, but it isn't done with
absol ute blinders because driving the cost of gas too |ow would
make it unsustai nable. He asked how those things are bal anced.

11:43: 26 AM
MR. DE VRIES replied the balance is to consider all the factors
that will inpact the utility market. In the current case the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -45- Novenber 25, 2008



attorney general |ooked at the evidence regarding: existing
reserves; a pricing proxy and what was suggested to be
conpensatory; earlier direction from the comm ssion about what
woul d and would not be reasonable; available information about
when Enstar needed gas; and pricing vehicles that could be
viewed as a reasonable proxy for Cook Inlet gas. Also, they did
not advocate for a pricing structure that, in RAPA s opinion,
woul d not have been reasonabl e and conpensatory.

11: 44: 36 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if it's practical to expect that Enstar
could call on the existing Beluga field contract and pass $11
gas on to those 400 custoners.

MR DE VRIES said if that contract is a viable source for
additional gas for Enstar, they could call on it and those gas
costs woul d be passed along to consuners.

11:45: 30 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if the state is entitled to take as
royalty in kind one-eighth of the gas that is exported.

MR DE VRIES replied he isn't the one who can answer that
guesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if there is any advantage to Enstar
not to negotiate for a lower price wth Mirathon and
ConocoPhillips and tell consunmers that the $11 gas from Bel uga
is the avail abl e opti on.

MR. DE VRIES replied it would obviously cost consuners nore and
he must note that this is the first he’'s heard that the Bel uga
contract offered a vehicle for neeting Enstar’s 2009 gas needs.
He didn't recall that Enstar nmentioned that during the course of

the proceedings before the comm ssion. “I don’'t know if Enstar
woul d care to comment on that before the commttee, but in any
event, | don't know that that’s true nor do | know that it’s not
true.”

11: 47: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA questi oned whether consuners should worry
that Enstar mght appeal leaving the Beluga field and paying
nore for gas as their only recourse.

MR. DE VRIES replied he had no idea of the advantage that m ght
provi de to Enstar.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 46- Novenber 25, 2008



11: 48: 37 AM

CHAIR FRENCH found no further questions and said that on
Decenber 2 he'll wake up with a keen eye for devel opnents in the
case. He added that he continues to believe that the 400 people
who received the letter are caught in the mddle, but he has
every faith that these big commercial players will work this out
bef ore next week.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 11:49:36 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -47- Novenber 25, 2008



